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          1  ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Good morning,

          3  everyone. I'd like to call this meeting of the

          4  Subcommittee on Zoning and Franchises to order.

          5  Joining me are Committee members, Council Member

          6  Erik Dilan, Simcha Felder, Melinda Katz, Larry

          7  Seabrook, and Al Vann. We're also joined by Council

          8  Members John Liu and Rosie Mendez, who have items

          9  before us this morning.

         10                 We are going to skip around a little

         11  bit and I'd like to take actually the last item

         12  first, which is an application for a sidewalk cafe

         13  in Rosie Mendez's district. An application by

         14  Salvatore's Corporation, also known as Coppola's, to

         15  establish, maintain, and operate an unenclosed

         16  sidewalk cafe located 378 Third Avenue. It is Land

         17  Use 293, 20075014 TCM.

         18                 MR. KELLY: Good morning, Chairpersons

         19  Avella, Katz, Council Member Mendez and Committee

         20  Members. My name is Michael Kelly. And I'm

         21  representing Salvatore's Corp., which is applying

         22  for a sidewalk cafe at 378 Third Avenue in

         23  Manhattan. We have agreed with Council Member Mendez

         24  to reduce the cafe and have submitted a notorized

         25  letter to the Council confirming this agreement. The
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          2  letter reads:  "Please accept this letter as our

          3  confirmation of our agreement with you to amend and

          4  reduce our sidewalk cafe application to three tables

          5  and nine chairs, which will be placed against the

          6  building.

          7                 We will file an amended application

          8  and plans for our cafe with the Department of

          9  Consumer Affairs reducing the cafe to three tables

         10  and nine chairs. We will abide by the limitations of

         11  the license and not use any sidewalk space, which is

         12  not permitted by the license, nor put out more than

         13  three tables and nine chairs."

         14                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Council Member

         15  Mendez.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: Yes, this

         17  application was originally denied by Community Board

         18  6 and after discussions with the owner and the

         19  community board, they have agreed to this amendment

         20  and I'm very happy that all sides have been able to

         21  come to said agreement. Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: We have received

         23  the letter that you mentioned and that will be

         24  entered into the record. Are there any questions

         25  from Committee Members? With that, thank you.
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          2                 MR. KELLY: Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: If there is no

          4  one else signed up to speak on this item, I will

          5  close the public hearing on it. We will now move on

          6  and again I will skip around a little bit. We will

          7  go to the Land Use Numbers 291 and 292, application

          8  by New York Hospital of Queens, C 060305 ZSQ and C

          9  060303 ZMQ; application for the grant of a special

         10  permit and an amendment to the zoning map.

         11                 MR. SINACORI: Good morning, Council

         12  Members. What we are going to do is we are going to

         13  give a brief power point presentation on the project

         14  from our architect, Mitchell Levy of Perkins Eastman

         15  and then we will be here to answer any questions

         16  that you may have.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Steve, I don't

         18  think you mentioned your name for the record.

         19                 MR. SINACORI: Oh, Steven Sinacori

         20  with the law firm of Stadtmauer Bailkin. With me is

         21  Mitchell Levy of Perkins Eastman Architects and

         22  Lance Michael's of Stadtmauer Bailkin.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I would also

         24  mention for my Committee Members that this project

         25  lies within Council Member John Liu's district.
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          2                 MR. LEVY: Good morning, Council

          3  Members. Thank you for hearing our submission this

          4  morning. My name is Mitchell Levy from Perkins

          5  Eastman Architects representing New York Hospital

          6  Queens in their application for the rezoning of

          7  their hospital lot, large scale community facility

          8  development and a parking special permit

          9  application. I will run through a brief power point

         10  presentation to describe the project and outline the

         11  items on the agenda.

         12                 Right now, the hospital is requesting

         13  an upzoning from their main campus which is an R4

         14  currently to a R6 and asking for a large scale

         15  community facility development to incorporate the

         16  hospital main campus as well as the adjacent lot

         17  that they own across the street which we are

         18  proposing to be a parking garage (underground

         19  parking garage), which we are requesting a special

         20  permit for the underground parking for allowing

         21  parking above 100 parking spaces. We are proposing

         22  372 parking spaces on grade and two levels below.

         23                 We are also withdrawing what was an

         24  original application for a three and half story

         25  parking garage above grade in cooperation and

                                                            7

          1  ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  collaboration with the community and the Community

          3  Board 7 and the district itself. We are also from

          4  the original application withdrawing a pedestrian

          5  bridge that was connected to that above ground

          6  parking to the main hospital for a connection to it.

          7                 Currently, what we are showing here

          8  is the main campus as it is. I apologize not having

          9  a pointer to it. You can see down the Main Street

         10  the existing parking garage that is one above and

         11  one below grade and that is the location for the new

         12  addition. The main campus is between Booth Memorial

         13  and Main Street and 141st Street. The main campus

         14  hospital with emergency is on Booth Memorial. The

         15  main entrance is on Main Street where that bus is.

         16  There is the other view looking from the Flushing

         17  side back at the main entry to the parking garage.

         18                 The overview is we are remodernizing

         19  and upgrading all the services in that facility for

         20  the new building which includes acute care, 80 beds,

         21  outpatient scenarios for cardiology as well as

         22  inpatient beds and cardiology and also for

         23  orthopedics. Excuse me. The complex right now is

         24  currently zoned as an R4 and we needed to increase

         25  it to an R6 to allow for height as well as FAR.
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          2  Currently, the program presented here is for 80 new

          3  beds; new ambulatory surgery suite for ten O.R.'s;

          4  new interventional units serving radiology,

          5  cardiology, vascular, imaging and ten procedure

          6  rooms in the new facility.

          7                 We are creating a new drop off main

          8  entry rather than the small one that they have

          9  currently. We are having new endoscopy suites and

         10  the new parking facility which is across the street.

         11  This picture shows the new addition above what is

         12  that existing parking garage to the main hospital.

         13  We are trying to keep within the context of the

         14  facility itself using similar materials as the glass

         15  and the brick around the campus and the awning that

         16  is in the middle here where it is by that red car is

         17  the new drop off. It is a circular drop off coming

         18  in and out to bring traffic off the street.

         19                 The land use, what we are showing

         20  here is the site on it where you have the green on

         21  the left is the main building addition and the green

         22  on the right is the parking addition on the current

         23  land that the hospital owns. This view is a

         24  perspective of the proposed parking structure which

         25  is on grade and two levels below. We are creating
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          2  what's called an estate fencing around it to keep it

          3  within the nature of the community and protected

          4  from people entering and for security. We have two

          5  bulkheads for egress on the sides.

          6                 The under ground parking we are going

          7  for two below grades; one on for 372 cars. The

          8  traffic comes in and exits off Booth Memorial.

          9  Nothing on 141st Street. All pedestrian access will

         10  be from the Booth Memorial Avenue crosswalk. As I

         11  mentioned, we are proposing a estate fencing which

         12  is a brick base with a rod iron top to keep it in

         13  the community context as well as the nature of the

         14  hospital. We are landscaping both on Booth Memorial

         15  as well as 141st Street with trees and ground cover.

         16                 This picture describes the lay out of

         17  the parking garage where on the bottom part of the

         18  screen you will see that it is the main entry. We

         19  have two entries coming in with a lead in and a

         20  reservoir area that is required by zoning to a gated

         21  stop where they will have two combinations of a

         22  valet and self- park. And the down ramp goes to the

         23  lower levels. The lights, we are proposing lights on

         24  for security reasons. They are directed and the

         25  study shows that it is focused on the parking itself
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          2  and they are brought up from the estate fencing.

          3                 This is a proposed landscaping

          4  diagram showing the trees surrounding the parking

          5  garage as well as shrubbery along the fencing to

          6  bring ivy and shrubs up against it to incorporate

          7  into a more residential feel. This is a design of

          8  the fencing. There are two areas that have a high

          9  brick area, not exceeding the six foot height to

         10  this part and maximize 7'6 to prevent light from the

         11  parking cars going into the adjacent houses across

         12  the street.

         13                 MR. SINACORI: I'd just like to add on

         14  that. The landscaping will be in front of the

         15  fencing so it will be buffered by the landscaping.

         16                 MR. LEVY: Right. This is just the

         17  physical piece through conversations and cooperation

         18  with the community. It was agreed that we put this

         19  fence up --

         20                 MR. SINACORI: To block any lights

         21  from coming into --

         22                 MR. LEVY: -- This way it blocks any

         23  traffic lights from the cars coming in. This is a

         24  section of how the parking garage has different

         25  grades. A lot of it is below the surface of the
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          2  existing grade of the Booth Memorial on 141st Street

          3  because it does ramp down on a slope and you will

          4  see the heavier part on the bottom is a thick brick

          5  fencing with a rod iron with shrubs and trees in

          6  front for traffic and pedestrian safety.

          7                 These are the mitigating issues that

          8  came up where the traffic studies and working with

          9  DOT and the community, we have presented to it,

         10  where the mitigating measures on the red strips

         11  (mitigating measures includes in the EAS, no

         12  standing before 4:00 and 7:00 p.m. Monday through

         13  Friday; additional three second green time for

         14  east/west traffic along Booth Memorial Avenue. An

         15  additional ten second green time for north/south

         16  traffic along Main Street and p.m. peaks and this is

         17  already being approved by the DOT. And the orange

         18  dot is existing traffic through.

         19                 MR. SINACORI: I wanted to add that

         20  this is the traffic mitigation that is already been

         21  approved by the Department of Transportation. The

         22  Community Board suggested a number of additional

         23  traffic calming ideas, lights, crosswalks and we

         24  agreed with the Department of Transportation and the

         25  Hospital and the Community Board and Councilman that
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          2  as the project proceeds, we will study all of those

          3  and if they meet the Department of Transportation

          4  warrants, the hospital would be more than happy to

          5  implement those additional requests.

          6                 MR. LEVY: I'll just add on that, the

          7  study can only happen on an existing condition. So

          8  it is after the construction has been done so that

          9  they can actually take full readings on the

         10  application of that point. That is the end of the

         11  presentation. Thank you very much.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Council Member

         13  Liu.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Thank you, Mr.

         15  Chairman for holding this hearing. I speak in

         16  support of these applications and I would urge that

         17  the Subcommittee give favorable consideration. This

         18  is a hospital, an institution that is vitally

         19  important not only in Flushing, but I would say the

         20  New York area. I think it is certainly commendable

         21  that they have the wherewithal to not only envision,

         22  but implement expansion plans in a time when we have

         23  some sort of crisis within many of our hospitals.

         24  And at that same time, locally they have addressed

         25  all of the community concerns in terms of providing
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          2  real reasons why it is beneficial for the residents

          3  to be neighbors of the hospital through the

          4  institution of a good neighbor club that will

          5  provide real medical benefits for immediate

          6  surrounding neighbors. And also really bending over

          7  backwards addressing the concerns of the local

          8  residents in terms of the garage that is being

          9  proposed and planned. I think this is a great

         10  project. I'm proud to have that in the area that I

         11  represent and I urge you, Mr. Chairman, and your

         12  Subcommittee to give it favorable consideration.

         13  Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you,

         15  Council Member. I just want to echo your comments

         16  because I know the hospital and the development team

         17  have changed the plans significantly since its first

         18  proposal. And you have obviously listened to the

         19  community. I think that speaks well of the team.

         20  Council Member Katz.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Thank you. I

         22  just want to make a comment and then put something

         23  on the record about the community facilities in

         24  this. But, since I was working at Borough President

         25  Shulman's office and the healthcare in the borough
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          2  of Queens has been a priority. And Borough President

          3  Shulman I know is extremely supportive of New York

          4  Hospital and Queens Hospital and the other hospitals

          5  in the borough. I'm happy to see that this hospital

          6  is expanding and that it will continue to give great

          7  healthcare in our own borough and that you don't

          8  need to go to Manhattan in order to get the services

          9  that you provide.

         10                 Just for the record since I brought

         11  it up so often in conversations with the hospital

         12  and the staff, there is a little bit of excess

         13  density here which is to be utilized by the

         14  community facility. At this point, there is no plan,

         15  just for the record, to put in the community

         16  facility. But that is what the excess density is. I

         17  just wanted to clarify that.

         18                 MR. SINACORI: Correct. And basically

         19  the zoning that is permitted on the main hospital

         20  block will be 4.8. The hospital is only utilizing

         21  2.4. But any additional flooring that is left over

         22  cannot be used unless it goes back to the ULURP

         23  process because the large scale community facility

         24  development plan is in place. That just clarifies

         25  that point.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I appreciate

          3  that and I just wanted to make that clear. I thank

          4  you and good luck.

          5                 MR. LEVY: Thank you.

          6                 MR. SINACORI: I just wanted to add, I

          7  wanted to thank Council Member Liu for all of his

          8  help on this project; Councilman Avella, Council

          9  Member Katz and the entire committee for working

         10  with us to get these approvals and make it a better

         11  project. Thank you very much.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Any other

         13  questions? Comments from Committee Members? Thank

         14  you, gentlemen. I don't see anyone signed up to

         15  speak in this item. If that is true, I will close

         16  the public hearing on this matter and we move on to

         17  the next item. We will now go to Land Use Numbers

         18  210 through 214. They are all related commonly

         19  referred to as the Stapleton Waterfront Project; C

         20  060293 MMR; N 060468 ZRR. And we have City Planning

         21  here to give the presentation.

         22                 MR. MCKNIGHT: Good morning, I'm Tom

         23  McKnight from the Economic Development Corporation

         24  and I'm joined by staff from Department of City

         25  Planning to present on the new Stapleton Waterfront,
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          2  the redevelopment of the Homeport in Stapleton,

          3  Staten Island. I'm going to give you a little

          4  background on the project and how we got to where we

          5  are today and give you a general overview of the

          6  actions. If you have very specific questions about

          7  the zoning or other actions, City Planning is here

          8  to answer those. You also see a hand out that

          9  provides all the details that you could ever imagine

         10  related to the actions.

         11                 The plan that is before you today is

         12  really an achievement. One that really brought

         13  together the Administration and the community and

         14  the electeds on a project. That is really fantastic

         15  and I think will really change the face of

         16  Stapleton. It began in early 2003 with the creation

         17  of the Homeport Task Force which involves the

         18  Administration, Councilman McMahon and the other

         19  Council Members, the Community Board, the Borough

         20  President, a full range of community representation.

         21  We worked for about a year and a half on a very

         22  outreach oriented planning process. The result of

         23  which is what you see here today. It is a mixed use

         24  project bordered, bookend by residential, some

         25  retail, a banquet hall, restaurant, and athletic
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          2  facility.

          3                 It is a combined with a full

          4  infrastructure package. The Mayor allocated $66

          5  million for the infrastructure that goes along side

          6  the development that you see before you. And that

          7  $66 million is really designed to compliment the

          8  development and really create a new waterfront

          9  destination. Those infrastructure components just

         10  broadly are roadway reconstruction, the creation of

         11  a continuous waterfront esplanade and two new open

         12  spaces.

         13                 The Mayor announced the completion of

         14  the plan in November 2004. Since that time, we have

         15  been continuing to work with the task force on

         16  several fronts. Really, three primarily. The first

         17  is advancing the design of the infrastructure

         18  package. We have an interdisciplinary design team

         19  working on that. The second piece is relocating City

         20  agencies while the Homeport site was vacant. It has

         21  been vacant sadly for a fairly long time. The City

         22  agencies were relocated on this site. We are working

         23  on relocating the City agencies.

         24                 Lastly, we have been preparing for

         25  the public approval's process and this really being
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          2  the culmination. A full EIS has been prepared and

          3  the approvals that are before you today are zoning

          4  actions, the creation of a special district, mapping

          5  actions to deal really with the substandard streets

          6  in the area and finally, property disposition and

          7  those really relate to the development sites. That's

          8  the full package.

          9                 As I said, this has been a really

         10  long time coming. We are really excited to implement

         11  it. The next step is going forward post approval,

         12  God willing, is issuance of developments RFP's which

         13  will happen early next year and breaking ground on

         14  infrastructure also early next year. So those are my

         15  remarks. If you have any questions, I'll be happy to

         16  answer them.

         17                 MR. GARCIA- DURAN: Good morning,

         18  Council Members. My name is Len Garcia- Duran,

         19  Staten Island City Planning Director. I can just

         20  briefly review the zoning actions that are before

         21  you this morning. Actually, I'm going to step back a

         22  second just to give you a framework of the area

         23  itself. The actions themselves cover both the Navy

         24  Homeport site itself and also the private lots

         25  between Front Street and the Staten Island Rail Line
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          2  by 18 private lots primarily manufacturing marine

          3  uses, furniture stores, warehousing. And access to

          4  the area is provided by Front Street which as Tom

          5  noted was a substandard street built by the Navy. It

          6  has no trees, no sidewalks and for the most part it

          7  is not a mapped street.

          8                 It is also provided by Bay Street

          9  which is the main commercial corridor and the

         10  historic Stapleton neighborhood itself predominately

         11  low- rise buildings of commercial at street level

         12  and two or three floors of residential above and

         13  also the Staten Island Rail Line provides

         14  connections to the Staten Island ferry (about a five

         15  minute ride to the ferry) and three different

         16  station stops providing access to the Homeport

         17  itself.

         18                 There are four zoning actions

         19  themselves as Tom noted was a City map change to

         20  actually realign and map Front Street itself and

         21  make some additional mapping corrections to some of

         22  the connecting streets. A zoning map amendment to

         23  rezone the area from the current M2- 1 and M3- 1 to

         24  a C4- 2A. That is a contextual commercial district

         25  that allows these mixed use buildings to be provided
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          2  and also requires any residential construction to

          3  meet the quality housing program rules.

          4                 A zoning text amendment to create the

          5  special Stapleton Waterfront District which is only

          6  Staten Island's fourth special planning district in

          7  the entire island. These new rules in special

          8  district will provide additional regulations on the

          9  FAR, the building heights and visual corridors,

         10  walls and additional regulations. These new rules

         11  were provided to ensure that future development

         12  would match the neighborhood character and scale of

         13  the existing upland portion of Stapleton itself.

         14  Fourthly, there is a disposition of City owned lands

         15  to create the development parcels and also to

         16  provide additional opportunities for outdoor

         17  recreation on the Waterfront Esplanade itself.

         18                 The application was certified by the

         19  City Planning Commission on the 8th. The Community

         20  Board 1 recommended its adoption by 24 members in

         21  support, one opposed. The Borough President

         22  expressed his support of the application and the

         23  City Planning Commission voted to approve it on

         24  September 27.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: This project lies
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          2  within Council Member McMahon's district and I'm

          3  sure he would like to make a comment. Council Member

          4  McMahon.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: Thank you,

          6  Mr. Chairman. I know that time is short so I will

          7  not go into the day by day history over the last 12,

          8  13 years that have gotten the people of Stapleton

          9  and Staten Island and New York City to this point.

         10  What I do want to make clear to my colleagues and

         11  why I support this project wholeheartedly, although

         12  there are certainly some aspects that if this was

         13  the best of all possible worlds, we could even make

         14  more perfect. But the reason I support it is that

         15  this for over a decade is for the people of Staten

         16  Island was really just a port of disappointment.

         17  Great promises came from the federal government when

         18  the Navy was being sited there about the great

         19  rejuvenation that that would have for this district.

         20                 After spending over a half of billion

         21  dollars, actually more on this site, the Navy never

         22  really came. The Iowa never actually called its port

         23  of call and shortly thereafter the Homeport program

         24  was discontinued by the federal government and since

         25  1994 when the City took title to this project, there
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          2  have been many false starts. Many false steps, many

          3  false promises made by prior Administrations. There

          4  was really a very sad history. Something that is

          5  still a very sore point for me that there was an

          6  initiative to put a film studio here on this site

          7  and I still believe to this day that there were

          8  nefarious forces in other parts of the City who

          9  worked to put an end to that film studio. That was

         10  really the low point in the history of this site as

         11  the film studio failed, I think to benefit other

         12  film studios in other parts of the City, we really

         13  hit bottom.

         14                 I have to say at that time the

         15  Bloomberg Administration through Andrew Alper, EDC

         16  and Deputy Mayor Doctoroff made a promise to set up

         17  a task force that would have teeth, that would have

         18  meaning and would have financial backing. As Mr.

         19  McKnight said, that was in 2003 and here we are

         20  three years later fulfilling those promises to the

         21  people. The task force worked hard. The plan that we

         22  have now is one that I think it will benefit this

         23  area immensely and also has the $66 million behind

         24  it to get the infrastructure in place. That being

         25  said, I wholeheartedly support it.
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          2                 If I may, I would just like to ask a

          3  few questions to just clarify a few things for the

          4  record. And I also thank City Planning who worked so

          5  hard with Mr. McKnight at EDC on this and all the

          6  members of the task force. Len, the many reports

          7  talk about the fact that this plan will include only

          8  350 housing units and some people think that is too

          9  little. But isn't it correct that with the inclusion

         10  of the private portion, the sea lot as it is

         11  described in the scale of sort of easy to read maps,

         12  there will be additional residential housing within

         13  this pocket. Isn't that correct?

         14                 MR. GARCIA- DURAN: That is correct.

         15  As I noted the private lots between the Navy

         16  Homeport and the Staten Island Rail Line will also

         17  be included in the special district and the

         18  rezoning. They are currently zoned for manufacturing

         19  uses only. They will also get to the seaport to a

         20  new zoning which will allow residential mixed use

         21  buildings which we are guesstimating providing

         22  approximately several hundred more additional

         23  residential units.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: Roughly about

         25  the same amount. If things were built out so to
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          2  speak, you could have up to 700 apartments at the

          3  Homeport site.

          4                 MR. GARCIA- DURAN: Yes.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: Including the

          6  private land?

          7                 MR. GARCIA- DURAN: Correct.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: And then if

          9  you add to that all the other building that is going

         10  on in St. George, another 800 apartments between the

         11  Homeport and the ferry, you have very substantial

         12  residential development. Would you agree as a City

         13  Planner that could be the critical mass that could

         14  really bring back this neighborhood and jump start

         15  it and bring back that economical revitalization

         16  that we all strive for?

         17                 MR. GARCIA- DURAN: We certainly hope

         18  so.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: Okay. And

         20  certainly, I have to renew my call for a planning

         21  ZAR. Tom, I hope you will take that back to your

         22  boss because of so many things that are going on

         23  this district, we want to make sure that there is

         24  coordination for that. You know that is something

         25  that I will continue to call for. There will be some
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          2  folks here this morning who I know will testify and

          3  some of my favorite constituents about the failure

          4  to include boat house and clearly specify the

          5  ability to have water access for people whether it

          6  is by boats or kayaks or canoes.

          7                 It is my understanding though the way

          8  we have laid out the plan that that possibility

          9  still exists. Am I wrong or right or if you could

         10  sort of answer the questions that we are going to

         11  get because you can't come back and answer them

         12  later.

         13                 MR. MCKNIGHT: Of course. The design

         14  does include a location for a boat house. A plot has

         15  been set aside for the future should there kind of

         16  be the consensus and the funds that, yes, that could

         17  be part of the project. As far as water access,

         18  kayak access and small non- motorized craft access

         19  is included as part of the plan.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: It is?

         21                 MR. MCKNIGHT: Yes.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: Just for my

         23  colleagues too because most people look at this and

         24  think the pier itself, sort of the prime asset of

         25  the Navy Homeport is part of the immediate planning
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          2  that we are doing. Can you just clarify for the

          3  record why we are not planning on the pier right

          4  now?

          5                 MR. MCKNIGHT: Yes, sure. The pier is

          6  a really unique asset. It is about 1,400 feet. It

          7  was designed to more an aircraft carrier. It is very

          8  unusual. However, when the Navy gave up the Homeport

          9  as Council Member McMahon mentioned, they did retain

         10  the use, the occasional use of the pier for docking

         11  ships. They will have that right for the next

         12  approximately six or seven years. We anticipate that

         13  they will continue to want to be there in the

         14  future.

         15                 In addition, the fire department uses

         16  the pier currently and we do anticipate in the

         17  interim that the Intrepid could be staged there. We

         18  recognize that it does have kind of a working

         19  waterfront role and given that, the Navy and other

         20  uses will be there into the future, it's not part of

         21  the redevelopment plan.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: But certainly

         23  it may be down the road depending on the

         24  relationship with the Navy?

         25                 MR. MCKNIGHT: It is certainly our
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          2  hope in the longer term to identify a way to allow

          3  some public access or other kind of public uses and

          4  maintain the waterfront uses as well.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: Just one

          6  more, Mr. Chairman. I have bought the champagne for

          7  the ground breaking for the infrastructure work

          8  which you said would begin early next year, but I

          9  have not put it on ice yet because we can't have a

         10  total celebration on Staten Island until you just

         11  guarantee for us here today, Tom, that the courts

         12  that are presently located at this site will not be

         13  pushed out into the street until they have a

         14  suitable alternate location so that the rendering of

         15  Civil and Criminal Justice can continue without

         16  interruption on Staten Island.

         17                 MR. MCKNIGHT: Most definitely. As I

         18  mentioned earlier, a big part of this project is

         19  agency relocation, the courts included. We, of

         20  course, have been very sensitive to that need. We

         21  have been working with the Mayor's Office of

         22  Criminal Justice Coordinator in identifying a new

         23  location. It is being done sensitively. We will not

         24  seek to have them thrown from the site.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: Can't we
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          2  begin some infrastructure work and work around them

          3  in the beginning?

          4                 MR. MCKNIGHT: That's the way it is

          5  looking. We had hoped that a lot of the agency

          6  relocation would have been able to happen around the

          7  end of the year. It is looking like it is going to

          8  take longer than that by a couple of months. Right

          9  now, we are working with the designers to kind of

         10  approach the project from a staged way to kind of

         11  work around the agencies that are there. That's what

         12  when we have our next task force meeting we will be

         13  talking about.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: Okay. Again,

         15  let me just conclude and Mr. Chairman, thank you for

         16  your indulgence by again just underscoring the fact

         17  that we spend a lot of time decrying and bemoaning

         18  the failures of government and the lack of follow

         19  through and promises, but thanks to our friends at

         20  EDC and the Mayor's office and City Planning, it is

         21  a long road. It takes a long time. Certainly, folks

         22  on this Committee understand that. This is one time

         23  that I will say that promises were made and promises

         24  are being kept. And I'll proud to be part of that

         25  process. Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you. I

          3  would mention that we have also been joined by

          4  Council Members Jimmy Oddo, Helen Sears and Eric

          5  Gioia. Questions from Committee Members, Council

          6  Member Katz.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Thank you. I

          8  know it has been a long haul getting here. The only

          9  thing that I found interesting about this

         10  application was that the RFP is not out and we are

         11  sort of doing the zoning first. When I talked to EDC

         12  and Planning about that, the idea basically was

         13  clearly that it has been a long haul and we want to

         14  move forward. I guess my only comment is we talked

         15  about open access and making sure that there are

         16  spaces available and I know that the Councilman

         17  already questioned you on that. But as you move

         18  forward, since I do think it is a little unusual, I

         19  am making the jump that the Councilman and the

         20  elected officials in the area will be clearly

         21  involved in every step of this process as you move

         22  forward, not only creating the RFP, but also in

         23  looking at it and figuring out what really needs to

         24  be there once the zoning is done and working that

         25  out with them in the future.
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          2                 MR. MCKNIGHT: That has been our

          3  approach and we will continue to be our intent

          4  working with the task force on the RFP. As you said,

          5  our goal here is really to kind of get a shovel in

          6  the ground as soon as we can. We kind of took a

          7  parallel track moving ahead with the design as well

          8  as moving ahead with the approvals. The plan that

          9  the consensus was around is fairly specific. For the

         10  RFP's, we will be implementing that plan and the

         11  zoning will allow for the implementation to plan,

         12  but provides the flexibility.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Right. It is all

         14  set --

         15                 MR. MCKNIGHT: So we are not in a

         16  situation --

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: -- Except where

         18  the open space is. Whether there will be a sports

         19  complex --

         20                 MR. MCKNIGHT: Yes.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: -- How much. It

         22  is all set except for those questions and it seems

         23  to be a lot of questions, but I know that you will

         24  work very closely with the Councilman as you move

         25  forward on this. And we look forward to the change
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          2  there. Thank you.

          3                 MR. MCKNIGHT: You have our

          4  commitment.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Council Member

          6  Helen Sears.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Thank you. I

          8  just have one question on the plans for parking. It

          9  is a lot of parking and it is all outdoors. Is there

         10  a plan for aesthetic design for that parking?

         11  Otherwise, I can see a very attractive plan that has

         12  just has row on row of these cars. And the reason I

         13  say that is the corporate center in Jackson Heights

         14  has won all kind of awards for their outdoor

         15  parking. I just wonder if that's included in the

         16  plans as to what kind of aesthetic designs you will

         17  have with trees and so on.

         18                 MR. GARCIA- DURAN: Actually each of

         19  the development parcels will have its own parking

         20  requirements. There is just not on street parking.

         21  On street parking is an addition to the required off

         22  street parking. In addition, we have also made --

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: What does off

         24  street mean? Underground parking?

         25                 MR. GARCIA- DURAN: It could be

                                                            32

          1  ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  surface parking. It could be indoor parking. It

          3  depends upon what the RFP's provide or what the

          4  private developers want to do. But there will be

          5  required parking in addition to the off site.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: That I know.

          7  That wasn't my question. My question was because

          8  they are going to be mandated to have parking.

          9                 MR. GARCIA- DURAN: Yes.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: I'm just

         11  raising the issue if the outdoor parking will fit in

         12  with the designs of the plans so that you just not

         13  having lots of parked cars without any kind of

         14  design that fits into the scheme of what is being

         15  developed. That's my question.

         16                 MR. GARCIA- DURAN: We've gotten a

         17  couple of additional controls for surface parking.

         18  There is landscaping and buffer requirements for any

         19  outdoor parking. But in addition, we have also

         20  identified where you can't have street front parking

         21  because we want to make sure that we have street

         22  wall construction. Both the quality housing program

         23  rules do not allow parking between the street and

         24  the building itself. We've also identified areas in

         25  the special district itself where you cannot have
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          2  street front parking. We want to make sure that the

          3  public outdoor spaces, the pier place and the coves

          4  themselves, in particular, are framed by buildings

          5  and outdoor uses, not parking.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Thank you.

          7  Thank you, Mr. Chair.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Any other

          9  questions from Committee Members? Council Member

         10  McMahon.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: Just one real

         12  quick that came to mind and there was some

         13  conflicting reports. Regarding commercial space, in

         14  the residential buildings and some of the other

         15  public use buildings, there will be ground floor

         16  retail to serve, not major retail centers, but some

         17  small retail spaces. Is that still the plan?

         18                 MR. MCKNIGHT: Yes. The project

         19  includes very limited retail. As you remember, the

         20  idea was to try and keep it limited so Bay Street

         21  would kind of get supported by the project. But the

         22  center residential site does include ground floor

         23  retail.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Seeing no other

         25  questions, thank you for your presentation. We have
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          2  three people signed up to speak on this item.

          3                 MR. MCKNIGHT: Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: As I call the

          5  three individuals, I'll remind them that you have

          6  three minutes each to speak. Tim Gamble, Gerald

          7  Blackstone, Katina Johnstone.

          8                 MR. GAMBLE: Thank you, Commissioners

          9  for agreeing to talk with us. My name is Tim Gamble.

         10  I'm a volunteer and an active member of an

         11  organization called the Downtown Boathouse in

         12  Manhattan that runs free kayaking on several spots

         13  on the Hudson River. I'm also a volunteer member of

         14  an organization called the Red Hook Boaters in Red

         15  Hook Brooklyn that does the same sort of thing. The

         16  three of us are here today, but there is actually

         17  about five or six groups all throughout the Harbor

         18  that does this same sort of thing. What we're here

         19  to ask for is that in the plans there is an

         20  inclusion of public access to the water and also

         21  that they consider designing and building a

         22  boathouse facility for human powered boating so that

         23  any of the residents of Staten Island can finally

         24  enjoy what all the rest of us in the City have

         25  already had.
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          2                 I have been to Staten Island a number

          3  of times by kayak. It is a great spot and with this

          4  kind of exciting development would be perfect to fit

          5  in there. It sounds like they are already

          6  considering the idea of it. I guess the one thing we

          7  would really like as a design and development of

          8  both the program and the physical design goes

          9  forward that the people in City Planning or the EDC

         10  or the Parks Department, reach out to some of these

         11  groups that have been doing it for years and years

         12  so that the facilities are properly designed to

         13  allow people to use them the most.

         14                 These are all the activities that go

         15  on now in the Harbor, once the buildings are built,

         16  it is all run by volunteer labor. There is really

         17  very little cost. It is key that the design be done

         18  properly. I haven't been able to see the full design

         19  yet, but somebody mentioned that the boat house was

         20  not located near the water. The kayak's are heavy

         21  and it needs to be as close to the water if not on

         22  the water as possible and the ways to get in and out

         23  of the water need to be designed properly so that

         24  people in small boats can use it. The needs are very

         25  different than large motor boats. Like I said, we
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          2  have been doing this for, some of the organizations,

          3  ten or 12 years. We know exactly how to do it and we

          4  would love to work with the City Planning, EDC and

          5  the Parks Department. Thanks.

          6                 MR. BLACKSTONE: Good morning. My name

          7  is Gerry Blackstone from the Yonkers Paddling and

          8  Rowing Club. The only additional thought I have to

          9  what Tim said is that in the interim prior to the

         10  full scale development that is being proposed today

         11  that cargo containers for kayak storage be permitted

         12  there so that people can get on the water right away

         13  and discover who each of them are, who is interested

         14  in this, and from that once they know each other,

         15  then they can communicate and help shape the

         16  development of the permanent facility. In a 40 foot

         17  cargo container, you can store as many as 40 boats,

         18  40 kayaks. Some of the kayaks that you store could

         19  be for public programs for youth programs, kids who

         20  can get training and the public can get training

         21  right away without waiting a number of years for a

         22  permanent facility to be built. A cargo container

         23  could be dropped there next week. I hope that could

         24  be considered.

         25                 MS. JOHNSTONE: My name is Katina
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          2  Johnstone. I have been a resident of Staten Island

          3  for 22 years and a kayaker for 12 years and I have

          4  participated in all these wonderful organizations,

          5  kayaking, the City waters. And it has been very

          6  problematic to appreciate the waterways of Staten

          7  Island as beautiful as they are because we don't

          8  have a safe designated area to launch our boats and

          9  I want to echo my desire that the kayaking community

         10  be involved in the planning of the boat house and

         11  boat launch.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.

         13  Council Member McMahon.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: If I can tell

         15  you a quick war story, Mr. Chairman. My wife and I

         16  were fortunate enough to celebrate our 20th

         17  anniversary, our wedding anniversary this past

         18  August and I guess the romantics that we always

         19  bought each other kayaks. So I am now an official

         20  kayaker you see. I have a question out of that

         21  because we have these kayaks on a very calm lake and

         22  the first time I went to the kayak was a classic

         23  story. I was on the shore and I got in the kayak and

         24  I flipped right over. My daughter who was there

         25  tells everybody that story. She loved it. But that
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          2  leads me to my question. Are these waters safe? I

          3  don't know if I would get in a kayak out there. It

          4  is better open sea and the strong currents. Can you

          5  just tell me if that is such a great location for

          6  kayaking?

          7                 MR. GAMBLE: Sorry. I pushed the

          8  button the wrong way. Yes, the waters are safe. What

          9  is important though is that the programs and the

         10  equipment be designed properly. Again, by working

         11  with groups like us who have been doing it for

         12  years, we could pick out the proper kind of

         13  equipment. Probably the kayak you have for a small

         14  placid lake is not appropriate for a public program.

         15                 We've been through many iterations of

         16  different kinds of equipment. The boats we use now,

         17  like at the downtown Boathouse, I think they will

         18  probably do 40,000 kayak rides this summer and

         19  probably maybe they had three capsizes. It would be

         20  kids clowning around. We use these big wide flat

         21  kayaks. I mean I can stand up in them and paddle

         22  around. It is pretty much people just walk up off

         23  the street and do it.

         24                 The sport is there is many different

         25  levels. What we would like to do for the public is
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          2  something in a safe enclosed area that is safe. We

          3  will look for somewhere where the water is calm. But

          4  even if it is not, waves this tall and with these

          5  big flat boats, they don't capsize. It actually

          6  makes it more fun.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: I appreciate

          8  that. And you just should know and I'll say it again

          9  on the record that we have made a commitment to

         10  provide this access at the site and EDC and City

         11  Planning are aware of that and Parks as well and we

         12  are working on it. I just don't know if it will be

         13  possible as you said sir, to provide that access

         14  tomorrow during the construction phases. I don't see

         15  that as a realty. But in the planning and in the

         16  final product, there will be the type of facility

         17  that you seek. We will continue to work with you on

         18  that and certainly, Ms. Johnstone, we will make sure

         19  that we do it properly. She has my ear anytime she

         20  wants it. We thank you for coming and Mr. Chairman,

         21  thank you.

         22                 MR. GAMBLE: Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I would just like

         24  to mention before you leave that first of all, I

         25  appreciate your coming here today as well. Residents
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          2  in my district have actually asked for my help in

          3  putting together a kayak launch. I'm actually

          4  working with a developer who is doing a housing

          5  project and we may have some interest there. I would

          6  appreciate if you would leave me your contact

          7  information because I would like to prevail on your

          8  expertise in this.

          9                 MR. GAMBLE: Sure. I had a letter, but

         10  I didn't have enough copies. Did you get one of

         11  those? My contact information is on there.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Yes, I think I

         13  did.

         14                 MR. GAMBLE: The one that says Red

         15  Hook Boaters.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Yes.

         17                 MR. GAMBLE: That's it. It's all on

         18  the back there. I see your name in spelling, so you

         19  will probably be hearing from me too.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Good. I'm happy.

         21                 MR. GAMBLE: Thanks.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Okay, thank you.

         23  If there is no one else signed up to speak in this

         24  item, I'll close the public hearing on this matter.

         25  And we will move to the last item which is Land Use
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          2  Number 290, commonly referred to the as the Clifton

          3  Rezoning, C 060536 ZMR. An application submitted by,

          4  you don't have to do it from there, Rosebank

          5  Homeowners and Tenants Association and Council

          6  Member Mike McMahon, changing from R3- 2 district to

          7  an R3X district property bounded by Vanderbilt

          8  Avenue and other streets. Council Member McMahon is

          9  going to do the presentation.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: Thank you,

         11  Mr. Chairman. I've always wanted to sit on this side

         12  of the table and certainly I appreciate doing it in

         13  front of a friendly committee. Because I know there

         14  are other committees I could sit in front of that

         15  may not be so friendly. This is a small down zoning

         16  application for the people of Clifton in the north

         17  east end of my district. Quite simply, it is small,

         18  eight blocks, 240 lots going from a R3- 2 to R3X.

         19  And it is really sort of a triangle property that

         20  sat between two prior down zonings. One, the people

         21  at Rosebank Homeowners Committee and working with

         22  myself dated in the late '90's or by the 2000, maybe

         23  it was completed in 2001, sort of east of this area.

         24  And they didn't reach into the Clifton district

         25  because there was some natural barrier, namely the
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          2  Staten Island Rapid Railroad and some manufacturing

          3  districts. So they were shut off.

          4                 From the west, there was a down

          5  zoning done later on by the Borough President's

          6  office that also was sort of left out of this area

          7  because they didn't cross over the Bailey Seton

          8  property. This was sort of an island that sat there

          9  between two prior applications. It has the support

         10  of the community, the Borough President and the

         11  Community Board. It makes a lot of sense and over 95

         12  percent of these lots are already built on and it is

         13  just sort of conforming the zoning to what exists

         14  except in some pockets that have already seen what

         15  we all fear is the tear downs of traditional homes

         16  and existing neighborhoods and taking profit of

         17  inconsistencies in the current zoning.

         18                 This is really a zoning that conforms

         19  to what exists. It will serve to preserve a

         20  neighborhood that was founded originally by the

         21  Vanderbilt's. There are many Vanderbilt's that lived

         22  in some older homes here. And there is also a lot of

         23  two- family homes. It is an application that makes

         24  sense. And I just wanted to point out that the

         25  Borough President supports it with the direction

                                                            43

          1  ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  that we go and actually work with City Planning to

          3  include some homes on Greenfield Avenue that were

          4  not included. I just want to state again for the

          5  record that we are working with City Planning to try

          6  to include that. Having said all of that, I hope

          7  that the Committee will endorse and approve this

          8  application.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Questions from

         10  Committee Members? Nobody wants to question him? I

         11  don't know. You are getting off too easy. Thank you,

         12  Council Member.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: Thank you,

         14  Mr. Chairman. Thank you my colleagues and thank you

         15  to our friends at City Planning who worked with us

         16  and also to the Rosebank Homeowners Association

         17  which worked me as a co- applicant on this. Thank

         18  you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I see no one

         20  signed up to speak on this item, so I will close the

         21  public hearing. I will ask Counsel to call the roll,

         22  to call the vote on all the items that we've seen

         23  this morning. The Chair recommends approval. It is

         24  nice to see that all the items today, everybody was

         25  able to work out a compromise in the City especially
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          2  EDC and the City Planning working with the Council.

          3                 COUNCIL CLERK: Chairman Avella.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Aye on all.

          5                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member Dilan.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: Aye on all.

          7                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member Felder.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Aye.

          9                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member Katz.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Despite the

         11  witness who testified on the R3- 2, the R3X, despite

         12  that, I vote aye on all. Congrats.

         13                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member

         14  McMahon.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: Thank you.

         16                 With gratitude to Chairman Avella and

         17  Chairwoman Katz and to the wonderful staff at the

         18  City Council Land Use Division lead by Gail Benjamin

         19  and to City Planning and EDC, everybody who worked

         20  so hard on the Stapleton project and the task force

         21  itself and all its members, and for the Mayor to

         22  living up to his promise, I vote yes on the Homeport

         23  application and thanks to all of those, especially

         24  Len Garcia-Duran for the Clifton down zoning.

         25                 I vote aye on that and everything
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          2  else that is on the calendar today, and thank you

          3  for helping us celebrate another Queens/Staten

          4  Island day here at the City Council. Thank you.

          5                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

          6  Seabrook.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Aye on all.

          8                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

          9  Sears.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Aye on all.

         11                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         12  Vann.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN: Aye.

         14                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: The vote stands

         15  eight in the affirmative, none in the negative and

         16  no abstentions. The item is passed to the full Land

         17  Use Committee.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: We're going to

         19  hold the vote open for five minutes for Council

         20  Member Gioia.

         21                 I'll ask Counsel to read the results

         22  of the vote.

         23                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: All items

         24  passed. Eight in the affirmative, none in the

         25  negative, no abstentions and it will go to the full
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          2  Land Use Committee.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: That closes this

          4  meeting of the Subcommittee on Zoning and

          5  Franchises.

          6                 Thank you, everyone.

          7                 (Meeting concluded at 11:00 a.m.)
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          9                 I, LORI SANTOMIERI, do hereby certify

         10  that the foregoing is a true and accurate transcript

         11  of the within proceeding.
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         13  related to any of the parties to this action by

         14  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         15  interested in the outcome of this matter.
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